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Appear ances: M guel J. Carnona, Esq., Ofice of the Solicitor,
U S. Departnent of Labor, for Petitioner
Brent L. Mdtchan, Esq., St. Louis, Mssouri,
for Respondent
Bef or e: Admi ni strative Law Judge Steffey

Pursuant to witten notice dated Septenber 4, 1979, a
hearing in the above-entitled proceedi ng was held on COctober 10,
1979, in St. Louis, Mssouri, under section 105(d) of the Federal
M ne Safety and Health Act of 1977.

MSHA' s Petition for Assessnment of Civil Penalty was filed in
Docket No. LAKE 79-53 on May 14, 1979, seeking assessnment of a
civil penalty for an alleged violation of 30 CFR 77.1710(a).

| ssues

Si mul t aneous posthearing briefs were filed on Decenber 13,
1979, by counsel for MSHA and Sout hwestern Illinois Coa
Corporation. The briefs raise the issues of (1) whether a
viol ation of section 77.1710(a) occurred and, if so, what civil
penalty shoul d be assessed based on the six criteria set forth in
section 110(i) of the Act and (2) whether Southwestern Illinois
Coal Corporation should be required to pay a civil penalty for an
al l eged viol ati on which was conmtted by an i ndependent
contractor.

Fi ndi ngs of Fact

My decision in this proceeding will be based on the findings
of fact set forth bel ow
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1. Southwestern Illinois Coal Corporation operates the
Streamine Strip Mne which is | ocated i n Randol ph County,
[Ilinois. The mne enploys 176 m ners to produce about 5,600
tons of coal per day fromthe Illinois No. 6 coal seamwhich is
72 inches thick (Exh. 1, p. 3). Southwestern is controlled by
Arch M neral Corporation whose total annual coal production for
the year 1978 was 7,783,693 tons. Ashland G| Incorporated owns
a 48.9-percent interest in Arch Mneral Corporation (Exh. 1, pp
1&2).

2. Sout hwestern Illinois Coal Corporation, hereinafter
referred to as the operator, entered into a contract dated June
22, 1977, with Darryll Waggle Construction, Inc., hereinafter
referred to as Waggle. Under the contract, \Waggle agreed to
assenbl e and erect a Mbddel No. 8200 Marion Dragline at the
operator's Streamine Mne in accordance wi th bl ueprints and
ot her specifications to be provided by the operator. The
operator reserved the right to make changes in the draw ngs and
specifications. Waggle was obligated to provide all |abor and
supervision and all tools except that the operator agreed to
provi de all welding machi nes, torches, grinders, air notors, and
derrick or crawl er cranes (Operator's Br., Exh. 1, pp. 1-3).

3. Waggle was obligated under the contract to provide a
conpetent foreman or superintendent, satisfactory to the
operator, at the site of the work at all tines and Waggl e was
obligated under the contract to enforce strict discipline and
good order anong its enployees (Op. Br., Exh. 1, p. 3). The
contract provided that Waggl e should conplete the assenbly and
erection of the dragline within a period of 14 nonths after
sufficient material had been received at the erection site for
work to begin. The operator agreed to provide (1) a graded and
drained erection site at the streamine Mne, (2) an all-weather
access road to the erection site, and (3) a railroad spur and
unl oadi ng area for unl oadi ng dragline conponents, other
equi prent, and supplies (Op. Br., Exh. 1, pp. 4 & 5). WAaggle was
obligated under the contract to performall work on a "cost-plus”
basis and the operator reserved the right to inspect, audit, and
make phot ocopies of all of \Waggle's records (Op. Br., Exh. 1, p.
7). Under the contract, Waggle could not subcontract any work
wi t hout obtaining the operator's express permssion in witing
(Op. Br., Exh. 1, p. 9). Waggle was obligated under the contract
to reinburse the operator for any clains, damages, or |lawsuits
arising fromthe assenbly of the dragline, including any clains
or expenses arising under the Federal Coal Mne Health and Safety
Act of 1969, as anmended (Op. Br., Exh. 1, p. 10). Waggl e was
obligated under the contract to take all necessary precautions
for the safety of enployees and to conply with all applicable
provi sions of Federal, State, and |ocal safety [aws and buil ding
codes to prevent accidents or injuries to persons on or about or
adj acent to the prem ses where the work was being perforned (Op.
Br., Exh. 1, p. 12).

4. An MSHA inspector on January 9, 1979, went to the
operator's Streamline Mne and advi sed the operator's safety
director, M. Allan Byrd, that he woul d be naking an inspection



at the site where Waggl e was assenbling the Marion dragline (Tr.
9). The inspector then went to the construction site office where
he exam ned Waggl e's preshift and accident reports. The

i nspector was acconpani ed on his exam nation of the construction
site by
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Waggl e's safety representative, M. Sam H ggerson, and the UMM s
safety representative (Tr. 10).

5. When the inspector was about 40 feet northwest of the
dragline, he observed two of Waggle's enpl oyees at a point about
m dway of the boom WWen the inspector first saw the workmen,
they were about 220 feet fromhim It appeared to the inspector
that one of the enpl oyees was cutting nmetal with an
oxygen- acetyl ene torch while the other watched or assisted in the
cutting operation. The inspector started wal king toward the nen
to determ ne whether they were wearing safety goggles. The man
who was doi ng the actual cutting was wearing goggles, but the man
who was watching the cutting operati on was not wearing goggl es.
VWhen the inspector was between 100 and 10 feet fromthe men, he
calcul ated that the face of the man w t hout goggles was within
2-1/2 feet of the cutting torch. The workmen did not realize that
the inspector was in their vicinity until he was about 10 feet
fromthem At that tinme, they stopped working and turned to face
the inspector (Tr. 12; 29; 55; 63; 86; Exhs. B and Q)

6. The inspector |earned from Wggle' s construction site
representative that the nane of the workman who was observing the
cutting process was M. Doug Hepp. The inspector advised M.

H ggerson, Waggle's safety representative, that M. Hepp was in
viol ation of section 77.1710(a) which provides "[p]rotective

cl ot hi ng or equi pnent and face-shields or goggles shall be worn
when wel ding, cutting, or working with nolten nmetal or when ot her
hazards to the eyes exist." The inspector wote G tation No
771428 at 11:30 a.m, citing the operator for a violation of
section 77.1710(a) because (Tr. 12; Exh. 2):

Doug Hepp, a classified welder, was observed assisting
anot her welder in cutting out pieces of netal froma
section of 1-1/2" plate. M. Hepp's eyes were within
2-1/2 feet fromthe cutting tip and he was not wearing
any eye protection. The violation occurred in the boom
area of the 8200 Dragline on the construction site.

M. Hepp was under the supervision of Ralph Gaither

7. Athough M. Hepp testified that he keeps goggles in his
tool box and wears themwhen he is cutting with a torch, it was
necessary for M. Hepp to go to the welding shanty and procure a
pair of goggles after he was cited by the inspector for not
wearing them (Tr. 80-81). Both M. Horton, who was doing the
cutting when Citation No. 771428 was witten, and M. Hepp
testified that M. Hepp was standi ng behind M. Horton while
metal was being cut (Tr. 68; 76). \Waggle provided the goggles
used by its workers and Waggl e al ways had plenty of goggles at
the construction site (Tr. 81-82).

8. A master mechanic enployed by the operator presented a
di agram of a Model 8200 Marion dragline and testified that, in
his opinion, it would have been difficult for the inspector to
have determ ned from a di stance of approximately 220 feet that
M. Hepp's face was within 2-1/2 feet of
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the tip of the cutting torch (Tr. 63). The master mechanic al so
testified that there were two buildings in the general area where
the inspector was standing at the time he clains to have seen
Messrs. Horton and Hepp wor ki ng. The master nechani c expressed
the opinion that the two buildings nmight al so have obstructed the
i nspector's view of the place where Messrs. Horton and Hepp were
working (Tr. 63). The master mechani c, however, was not present
when the inspector made the investigation which resulted in the

i ssuance of Citation No. 771428 (Tr. 66). Messrs. Horton and Hepp
al so expressed a belief that the inspector would not have been
able to tell how close M. Hepp was to the cutting torch when the
i nspector was 220 feet fromthe cutting operation (Tr. 69; 77).

9. The inspector gave Waggle a period of 5 mnutes within
which to abate the violation of section 77.1710(a) and the
violation was abated within the tinme allowed. Therefore, the
i nspector was of the opinion that the operator had shown a good
faith effort to achieve rapid conpliance (Tr. 19; Exh. 2).

10. The danger associated with M. Hepp's failure to wear
goggles lies in the fact that a piece of nolten netal could have
flown up fromthe cutting torch and could have caused a serious
eye injury (Tr. 15). The inspector believed that the operator
had tried to the best of its ability to get all enployees to wear
protective eyewear (Tr. 17-18).

11. The inspector stated that it was MSHA's policy to cite
the operator for violations attributable to work perfornmed for an
operator by an independent contractor. At the tinme the inspector
wote Citation No. 771428, he was solely concerned with bringing
about conpliance with section 77.1710(a) rather than with a
guesti on of whether he should have witten the citation in the
nane of Waggle, instead of the operator of the Streanmline M ne
(Tr. 42-43). The inspector was aware of the fact that the
Secretary has published some proposed regul ati ons governing the
i ssuance of citations or orders in the nane of independent
contractors and he recognized that MSHA's policy of citing the
operator for violations commtted by independent contractors
m ght have to be revised after the regul ati ons have been
finalized (Tr. 49).

The 1ssue of Whether the Operator or Waggl e Shoul d Have Been
Cted

Inits brief (pp. 6-7), the operator correctly notes that
all of the persons working at the construction site were
enpl oyees of Waggl e except for a construction superintendent who
was enpl oyed by the operator to make sure that \Waggl e was
conformng with the operator's blueprints and specifications for
assenbly of the dragline. The operator argues that Waggle was in
the best position to control health and safety matters and t hat
there is no justification to allow MSHA to carry out its policy
of adm nistrative convenience in citing operators rather than
i ndependent contractors who are in actuality responsible for
vi ol ati ons.



MSHA' s brief (pp. 9-10) appropriately cites the inspector's
statenent that he had issued the citation in the name of the
operat or because it was
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MSHA's policy to cite operators for violations conmtted by an

i ndependent contractor's enpl oyees pending such tinme as the
Secretary finalizes his proposed regul ati ons governing the
procedures to be used for citing i ndependent contractors (Finding
No. 11, supra).

The Conmi ssion has so far upheld MSHA in citing operators
for violations commtted by i ndependent contractors (Secretary of
Labor v. Republic Steel Corporation, 1 FMSHRC 5; Secretary of
Labor v. Kaiser Steel Corporation, 1 FMSHRC 343; Secretary of
Labor v. Consolidation Coal Conpany, 1 FMSHRC 347; Secretary of
Labor v. A d Ben Coal Company, 1 FMSHRC 1480; and Secretary of
Labor v. Monterey Coal Conpany, 1 FMSHRC 1781). In the A d Ben
case the Commi ssion noted, however, that MSHA' s policy of citing
operators for independent contractors' violations should be an
interimpolicy and that if MSHA unduly prolongs that interim
policy, intead of inplenenting direct enforcenment procedures
agai nst the independent contractors, MSHA "* * * w |l be
di sregarding the intent of Congress” (1 FMSHRC at 1486).

The Conmi ssion's decision in the Ad Ben case, supra, was
not issued until 20 days after the hearing in this proceedi ng was
conpleted. In the Ad Ben case, the Comm ssion held that citing
an operator for contractor violations solely as a nere
adm ni strative expedi ent woul d be an abuse. The inspector was
specifically asked on cross-examnation if he had cited the
operator for the contractor's violation as an adm ni strative
conveni ence. The inspector denied that he had cited the operator
for mere conveni ence and stated that he had cited the operator in
this instance because that was MSHA's policy (Tr. 42-43).
Subsequently, the inspector stated that he was aware that
regul ati ons pertaining to citing i ndependent contractors had been
proposed and that he was aware that MSHA's policy of citing the
operator woul d probably have to be changed after those
regul ati ons have been finalized (Finding No. 11, supra). In such
circunstances, | find that the inspector's citing of the operator
for Waggle's violation was pernmissible in this case and that
MSHA' s Petition for Assessnent of Civil Penalty filed in this
proceedi ng shoul d be upheld as a proper way to proceed under the
1977 Act at the tinme Citation No. 771428 was issued.

The | ssue of Whether MSHA Proved that a Violation Cccurred

The operator's brief (pp. 3-6) contends that the inspector's
testimony was not sufficiently probative to establish that a
viol ation of section 77.1710(a) actually occurred. The operator
bases its contention that no violation was proven on two prinmary
argunents. First, the operator clains that the inspector was
unable to give sufficient details about the actions of M. Hepp
to establish that M. Hepp was assisting another welder in
cutting pieces of nmetal, as was alleged in Gtation No. 771428.

It is true that the inspector did not know precisely what
M. Hepp was doing. The inspector said that M. Hepp (1) could
have been nerely observing the other welder cut the netal, (2)
coul d have been picking up fallen pieces with a pair of tongs, or



(3) could have been marking netal. The inspector
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candi dly conceded that although M. Hepp m ght have been doing
any of the aforenentioned acts, he could not recall the exact
nature of M. Hepp's assistance. The inspector said that all he
was really claimng was that M. Hepp was so close to the cutting
torch that he should have been wearing goggles (Tr. 45).

M. Hepp corroborated the inspector's statenent by
testifying that both he and M. Horton had been told to cut
pi eces of netal froma |large section of plate. M. Hepp stated
that he had assisted M. Horton in marking the pieces before they
were cut. M. Hepp further said that although both he and M.
Horton normal ly woul d cut and weld each day, he did not recal
that he had personally done any cutting on January 9, 1979, prior
to the tinme that the citation was issued (Tr. 80; 83).

M. Horton al so corroborated the inspector’'s testinony by
stating that M. Hepp was hel ping himmark the pieces of netal
for cutting (Tr. 68). Therefore, | find that the preponderance
of the evidence supports the inspector's statenent in Ctation
No. 771428 to the effect that M. Hepp was "* * * assisting
anot her welder in cutting out pieces of netal” (Finding Nos. 6
and 7, supra).

The second argument made in the operator's brief (p. 4) is
that the inspector could not have determned that M. Hepp's eyes
were only 2-1/2 feet fromthe torch while the inspector was 220
feet away, particularly when consideration is given to the fact
that two buil dings were situated sone place between the inspector
and the site where the cutting was bei ng done.

A distance of 220 feet is less than the I ength of a footbal
field. Yet it is easy for a spectator with normal vision at a
football gane to tell when a player at the npbst renote part of
the field is lying on the ground or running or catching a pass.

I find that the inspector nade a credible statenent when he said
he could determ ne froma distance of about 220 feet that M.
Hepp was kneeling beside the man who was using the cutting torch
Moreover, it should be recalled that the inspector stated that he
first observed the workmen when he was about 220 feet fromthem
He then said that while he was wal king toward the nmen, he nade
his determination that M. Hepp's eyes were about 2-1/2 feet from
the cutting torch. It is unreasonable for the operator to argue
that the inspector should be able to specify the exact distance
he was from M. Hepp when he made his determ nation that M.
Hepp's eyes were about 2-1/2 feet fromthe cutting torch. The

i nspector said that Messrs. Hepp and Horton did not realize that
he was approaching themuntil he was about 10 feet fromthem It
is certain that the inspector would have been able to determ ne
at some point before he was within 10 feet of the men that M.
Hepp's eyes were within 2-1/2 feet of the cutting torch. The

i nspector's |last statenent on the subject was that he did not
think that he nade his determ nation that M. Hepp's eyes were
within 2-1/2 feet of the torch at a distance of 220 feet, but he
is certain that he was able to nake that determ nation by the
time he reached the 10-foot di stance when the nmen stopped cutting
and turned to face the inspector (Tr. 87-88).
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The npst that the operator's witnesses said about the inspector's
ability to determne the 2-1/2-foot distance was that it would
have been hard for the inspector to determ ne at a distance of
approxi mately 220 feet that M. Hepp's eyes were within 2-1/2
feet of the cutting torch (Finding No. 8, supra). None of the
operator's witnesses were asked to give an opinion as to whether
the inspector could have made that determ nation when he was
sonmewher e between 100 and 10 feet fromthe men. | find that the
preponder ance of the evidence supports a finding that the
i nspector nade a credible statenent when he said that he was able
to determine that M. Hepp's eyes were within 2-1/2 feet of the
cutting torch

The operator's brief (pp. 5-6) also contends that its
W tnesses' testinony to the effect that M. Hepp al ways stood
behind M. Horton when M. Horton was cutting is nore credible
than the inspector's testinony to the effect that M. Hepp was
kneel i ng down and was within 2-1/2 feet of the torch while M.
Horton was cutting. The operator's brief cites M. Horton's
statenment that M. Hepp stood to the rear of M. Horton while M.
Horton was cutting. M. Horton also clained that while he was
cutting, M. Hepp was not engaged in marking the netal (Tr. 68;
71; 74). The operator's brief also cites M. Hepp's testinmony to
the effect that he always stood up and turned around when M.
Horton started cutting with the torch. M. Hepp also testified
that he was about 5 feet 7 inches tall and that his face was
about 6 or 7 feet fromthe cutting torch when M. Horton was
cutting (Tr. 76; 84).

The operator's brief (p. 6) additionally argues that the
i nspector's inability to be certain as to details is fatal to
MSHA' s case. |In order for the inspector's lack of certainty as
to what M. Hepp was doing to be fatal to MSHA's case in this
proceedi ng, the lack of certainty would have to bear directly on
the nature of the violation charged. The inspector was certain
as to the vital point necessary for his testinony to support his
all egation that a violation of section 77.1710(a) occurred,
nanely, the inspector said that he was certain that M. Hepp's
eyes were close enough to the cutting torch to make it essential
for himto wear goggles in order to protect his eyes from
possible injury (Tr. 45). Moreover, as | have previously
i ndi cated above, the inspector's inability to know what M. Hepp
had been doi ng before he came within the inspector's scrutiny did
not prevent the inspector fromcorrectly concluding that M. Hepp
had unnecessarily exposed hinself to the hazard of a possible eye
injury by kneeling down close to the cutting torch

As to the operator's credibility argunents, | find, for at
| east two reasons, that the inspector's testinony was nore
credible than that of M. Hepp. First, it should be recalled
that M. Hepp testified that when M. Horton began cutting with
the torch, he stood up and turned around (Tr. 76). At no tine
did M. Hepp ever deny that the inspector was within 10 feet of
hi m before he realized that the inspector was in his vicinity.
If M. Hepp had actually stood up and turned around while M.
Horton was cutting with the torch, M. Hepp would have been in a



position to see the
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i nspect or approachi ng and woul d have been able to assert when the
i nspector cited himfor failing to wear goggles that he was not
even looking in the direction of the cutting torch, must |ess

cl ose enough to be injured by flying bits of nolten netal.

The second reason for downgrading the credibility of M.
Hepp's testinony is that M. Hepp testified that it was his
practice to cut and weld every day that he was at the
construction site. He stated that when he did cut or weld that
he al ways wore goggles or an eye-shield. He further said that he
kept his goggles in his tool box. Despite M. Hepp's assertion
that he kept his goggles in his toolbox, it was necessary for M.
Hepp to go to the welding shanty in order to obtain goggles when
he was cited by the inspector for failure to wear goggles (Tr.
80-81). If M. Hepp had been accustoned to wearing goggl es when
he was cutting, it is very unlikely that he would have had to go
all the way to the welding shanty to procure goggles when his
supervi sor asked himto get them

Finally, the operator's brief clains that MSHA coul d have
produced ot her witnesses to substantiate the inspector's claimas
to the 2-1/2-foot distance and to fill in other details Iacking
in the inspector's testinmony. The choice of wtnesses was a
defect which was nore apparent in the operator's presentation
than it was in MSHA's. The inspector stated that Waggle's safety
representative, M. Sam H ggerson, was with himat the tine he
observed M. Hepp violating section 77.1710(a) (Finding No. 4,
supra). Yet the operator tried to cast doubt on the inspector's
ability to see the cutting operation froma distance of 220 feet
by bringing in a witness who was not even with the inspector at
the tine the violation was observed. Cearly, the only person
who coul d have placed a real cloud of doubt over the inspector's
testimony woul d have been anot her person who was standing at the
same place the inspector was standi ng when the inspector first
observed the cutting operation. The operator's failure to
present M. Higgerson as a witness is a strong indication that
M. Higgerson was al so able to see Messrs. Horton and Hepp at a
di stance of 220 feet. Moreover, M. Higgerson woul d have been
able to draw a di agram showi ng the exact |ocation of the two
bui | di ngs which were allegedly close to the west end of the
dragline and M. Hi ggerson woul d have been able to state with
certainty whether the inspector was standing in a place where the
bui | di ngs woul d have bl ocked his view of the boom area where the
cutting operation was in progress.

Based on ny credibility determ nations and the foregoing
di scussion, | find that the preponderance of the evidence shows
that a violation of section 77.1710(a) occurred. It is now
necessary to consider the six criteria set forth in section
110(i) of the Act to determine what civil penalty is appropriate.

Si ze of the Operator's Business
On the basis of the facts set forth in Finding No. 1, supra,

| find that Southwestern Illinois Coal Corporation is a |large
operat or and that
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any penalty assessed in this proceeding should be in an upper
range of magnitude insofar as it is based on the criterion of the
size of the operator's business.

Ef fect of Penalties on Operator's Ability To Continue in
Busi ness

Counsel for the operator did not present any evidence at the
hearing with respect to the operator's financial condition. In
Buffalo M ning Co., 2 IBMA 226 (1973), and in Associ ated
Drilling, Inc., 3 IBVA 164 (1974), the former Board of M ne
Operations Appeals held that when a respondent fails to present
any evidence concerning its financial condition, a judge may
presune that payment of penalties would not cause respondent to
di scontinue in business. |In the absence of any specific evidence
to the contrary, | find that paynent of penalties will not cause
the operator to discontinue in business.

H story of Previous Violations

Counsel for the operator and MSHA introduced at the hearing
as Exhibit No. 1 sone data which the Assessnent O fice used in
this proceeding to arrive at a determ nation that the operator's
history of previous violations would result in assignnment of 8
points for the purpose of determ ning penalties in accordance
with the procedures set forth in 30 CFR 100.3. The Conm ssion
held in Secretary of Labor v. Shanrock Coal Co., 79-6-5, 1 FMSHRC
469, that a judge is not bound by the procedures used by the
Assessment OFfice in determ ning penalties and that de novo
assessnments are within the authority of the Conm ssion and its
judges. VWhen | am considering notions for approval of
settlenents, there is reason for ne to review the Assessnent
Ofice's findings as to the nunber of points which have been
assigned under the six criteria. In a contested case, however, |
woul d prefer that counsel for MSHA introduce a |isting of
respondent's actual previous violations, if any, so that | can
make findings regarding the criterion of history of previous
viol ations w thout having to exam ne the findings of the
Assessment O fice.

Normal Iy, | increase penalties when there is evidence before
me to show that a given operator has previously violated the same
section of the regulations which is charged in MSHA's Petition
for Assessnment of Civil Penalty in the case under consideration
In this case, the parties stipulated that the operator has not
previously violated section 77.1710(a). Therefore, | find that
respondent has no history of previous violations which has to be
consi dered when a penalty is assessed for the violation of
section 77.1710(a) which is before ne in this proceeding.

Good Faith Effort To Achi eve Rapid Conpliance

Citation No. 771428 gave M. Hepp a period of 5 mnutes
wi thin which to procure goggles. M. Hepp was able to obtain
goggles within the tinme given and the inspector term nated the
citation 5 mnutes after it had been issued. It was the



i nspector's opinion that a good faith effort to achieve rapid
conpli ance had been shown (Tr. 19). Therefore, | find that a
good faith
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effort to achieve rapid conpliance was nmade and the operator will
be given full credit for that mtigating factor in the assessnent
of a penalty.

Negl i gence

Counsel for MSHA introduced as Exhibit No. 3 a formon which
the inspector had indicated his views with respect to the
criteria of negligence and gravity. On Exhibit No. 3, the
i nspector checked a box which states that "[t]he condition or
practice cited could not have been known or predicted; or
occurred due to circunstances beyond the operator's control." At
the hearing, the inspector testified that the operator had tried
to the best of its ability, short of dischargi ng enpl oyees, to
get the workers to wear protective eyewear (Tr. 18).

I find on the basis of the evidence in this proceedi ng that
the violation of section 77.1710(a) was acconpanied by a | ow
degree of negligence.

Gavity

On the basis of Finding No. 10, supra, | find that the
vi ol ati on was noderately serious. The piece of nmetal which was
being cut with the torch was supported by two crib bl ocks so that
the nmolten netal would drop to the ground (Tr. 73). In such
ci rcunmst ances, there was not a very strong likelihood that M.
Hepp woul d have received a severe injury because of his failure
to wear goggl es.

Assessnment of Penalty

The inspector nade the follow ng reconmendati on with respect
to the assessnment of a penalty (Exh. 3, p. 2):

On this particular site, nmanagenment has repeatedly
attenpted to enforce safe working habits. Sone
enpl oyees, however, attenpt to circument the using of
protective equi prent. Al though managenent is
ultimately responsible for violations, | feel that in
this case |leniency should be exerci sed when assessi ng
the penalty. It is inpossible for managenent to
acconpany and supervi se each enpl oyee every m nute of
t he day.

Exhibit 1 indicates that the Assessnment O fice proposed a
penalty of $84.00 for the violation of section 77.1710(a) here
i nvol ved. MSHA's brief (p. 11) requests that a penalty of not
| ess than $84.00 be assessed. As indicated above, | am not bound
by the Assessnent O fice's reconmended penalties, but ny findings
must be based on the evidence presented by the parties. The
i nspector testified that the operator was not negligent and the
i nspector nade a special plea for leniency in the assessnent of
the penalty. The facts show that the violation was only
noderately serious. 1In such circunstances, | find that the
penal ty of $84.00 proposed by the Assessnent Ofice is fair and



reasonable in light of the evidence presented by the parties in
thi s proceedi ng.
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Fi ndi ngs and Concl usi ons

(1) Under the facts in this proceeding and current
Conmi ssi on precedents, MSHA's Petition for Assessnment of Cvil
Penalty shoul d be sustained in citing respondent for the
i ndependent contractor's violation of section 77.1710(a).

(2) Southwestern Illinois Coal Corporation should be
assessed a penalty of $84.00 for the violation of section
77.1710(a) alleged in Gtation No. 771428 dated January 9, 1979.

(3) As the operator of the Streamine Mne and controller
of the erection site involved in this proceedi ng, Southwestern
[Ilinois Coal Corporation is subject to the Act and to al
regul ati ons pronul gated t her eunder

VWHEREFORE, it is ordered:

Wthin 30 days fromthe date of this decision, Southwestern
II'linois Coal Corporation shall pay a penalty of $84.00 for the
violation of section 77.1710(a) alleged in Ctation No. 771428
dat ed January 9, 1979.

Richard C Steffey
Admi ni strative Law Judge
(Phone: 703- 756- 6225)



